MINUTES OF THE SELMA CITY COUNCIL
NOVEMBER 13, 2006
5:00 P.M.

Call to Order

Invocation: Pastor Doris Moultrie
Grace Fellowship Church

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

The Selma City Council met in a regular session in the Council Chambers of City Hall on Monday,
November 13, 2006 at 5:00 p.m. with the following members present during roll call: Council
President George Evans and Council members Cecil Williamson, Jean T. Martin, Samuel Randolph,
Johnnie M. Leashore, Bennie R. Crenshaw and Jannie M. Venter. Councilman Reid Cain was
absent during roll call, and arrived at 5:08 p.m. Councilwoman Geraldine Allen was absent during
roll call, and arrived at 5:17 p.m. Others present were Mayor James Perkins, Jr., City Clerk Lois
Williams, Assistant City Clerk Ivy S. Harrison, City Attorney Jimmy Nunn, City Treasurer Cynthia
Mitchell, and the Mayor’s Executive Assistant Darlene Rudolph.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

A motion was made by Councilman Williamson, and seconded by Councilwoman Allen,
to approve the agenda as written. The motion carried with a unanimous vote (show of hands) of
the Council.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

After approval of the agenda, President Evans asked for a motion to approve the minutes of the
October 9, 2006 regular meeting. During discussion, a motion was made by Councilman Cain, and
seconded by Councilwoman Martin, to approve the minutes, with the attachment of the
discussion. The motion passed with a majority vote (show of hands) of the Council.
Councilwoman Crenshaw, Councilwoman Venter, and Councilman Leashore abstained.

President Evans then asked for a motion to approve the minutes of the October 23, 2006 regular
meeting. A motion was made by Councilman Leashore, and seconded by Councilwoman Allen, to
approve the minutes of October 23, 2006 as written. The motion carried with a unanimous vote
(show of hands) of the Council.

CITIZENS' REQUESTS

Mr. David Blackmon
Re: Enforcement of Sales Tax and Enforcement of Copyright Issues

Dr. Monica Newton
Re: City’s Neighborhood Watch Meeting (“How to Start a Neighborhood Watch” Guide) -

Recognition of National Award for Crime Prevention

Ms. Jane Walker
Re: AMSTI (Alabama Math and Science Technology Initiative) - Wallace Community College

Ms. Sherica Braxton-Hatcher
Re: C.IT.Y. Program

Mrs. Debra Spicer, Mrs. Laurine Pettway and Ms. Gladys King
Re: Community Outreach Organization

L MAYOR'S REPORT

A. Resolution #R115-06/07 - Purchase of 111 Acres of Real Estate. Mayor Perkins
stated he wanted to address the Council as it relates to questions that were raised concerning the
land transaction. Mayor Perkins further stated the majority of the questions were answered during
Thursday’s Work Session, but there were a “couple” of questions that were not answered. Mayor
Perkins also stated the questions that were not answered deals specifically with the language
received. Mayor Perkins stated the questions that were not answered deals specifically with the
language that is from the financial institution, specific to the terms. Mayor Perkins stated there




PAGE 2 OF 11

SELMA CITY COUNCIL MEETING
NOVEMBER 13, 2006

5:00 P.M.

L MAYOR'S REPORT

was a question as to whether or not the bank was willing to finance the entire $1,000,000.00, and
the answer to that question is yes, but the City is not asking them to. Mayor Perkins stated the next
question dealt with details as to the type of loan, fixed or variable rate, years of financing, etc.
Mayor Perkins stated the information provided by the bank as a discussion of loan commitment
and terms of that is included in the document. Mayor Perkins stated the next question was, what
is the purpose of the loan? Mayor Perkins stated he has met with the City’s attorney, bank’s
attorney and bond attorney as it relates to the development of the 111 acres of real estate for a
proposed school site, park or cemetery, or for some other purpose deemed to be suitable for public
use by the Council. Mayor Perkins further stated after talking with the City’s attorney, the bank’s
attorney and bond attorney, it is left up to the Council as to what the purpose will be, and that can
be determined as the City proceeds with development of the land. Mayor Perkins stated the next
question that was asked was, what is the exact plan for the land? Mayor Perkins stated the exact
plan for the land is to develop it, and to have the Council, citizens and everyone work together and
develop a strategy. Mayor Perkins further stated in order to do that, we would have to own it.
Mayor Perkins stated the next question was, what community development, other than a school or
cemetery, would be there, in addition to, the proposed time lines for development? Mayor Perkins
stated the ultimate decision would be left up to the Council. Mayor Perkins also stated, as it relates
to the proposed time line for the development of this land, he would like to see it happen fast, but
itis up to the Council. Mayor Perkins stated the 4th question deals with details of the appraisal,
and he thinks these questions were answered during Thursday’s Work Session. Mayor Perkins
stated the details of the appraisal in terms of the area described as flood plane, and the clay soil, as
well as, the question concerning the creek were answered by the surveyor and the
environmentalist. Mayor Perkins stated the next question dealt with the amount of sewerage lines
in that area, and the possible health hazards, if any. Mayor Perkins further stated the appraisal
and surveyor indicate it is a plus to have sewerage lines in there already; cost effective. Mayor
Perkins also stated there were no health hazards. Mayor Perkins stated the anticipated estimate of
land development in terms of money and preparation of soil for land construction depends on
what the City intends to do with the land; a nice shopping center or mall could go there as well but
it would really depend on what the City’s intent to use the land would be. Mayor Perkins stated if
it is decided to put a school there, Selma High sits on about 18 acres of land where it is now; there
is still some 80 acres of land that can be developed into something else; any number of
developmental issues. Mayor Perkins stated the next question of what line item will be
appropriated for the $100,000.00 deposit is outlined in Resolution R115-06/06, which describes a
down payment of $50,000.00 and 10 monthly loan payments totaling $42,000.00 to be obligated
from the Community Reinvestment Account, for a combined total of $92,000.00 towards the
purchase of the land, which would not affect the General Fund Account at all. Mayor Perkins
stated the final question of, can we maintain a note such as the one required for a note of
$1,000,000.00 along with other expenses made; for instance, the present lawsuit of $300,000.00, and
the infrastructure problems, such as, the streets of the City of Selma, and the sustainability of
TrustBuild, etc. Mayor Perkins answered yes. Mayor Perkins stated in his estimation, all of the
questions that had been asked for a response have been answered and he asked Council if they
have any other questions specific to this transaction. Mayor Perkins stated according to rules for
meetings, only a member of the Council that votes down a resolution can bring it back up. Mayor
Perkins further stated to Council that he would respect their decision but that he has to ask each of
them if they are willing to bring it back up or not. Councilman Williamson stated he is not willing
to bring the resolution back up because the information that Mayor Perkins gave them indicated
Mr. Striplin paid $540,000.00 twenty years ago, paid taxes and he has got about $650,000.00 in that
land and it seems a million dollars is a little steep. Councilman Williamson further stated it could
be worth it because that is what the appraisal said but he thinks that it is a lot of money for this
land transaction. Mayor Perkins stated to Councilwoman Allen he hoped he had answered her
questions and did not know if she has other questions but would be happy to answer any further
questions she may have as best he knows. Councilwoman Allen stated she was very appreciative
of Mayor Perkins in his attempt to answer her questions. Councilwoman Allen further stated she
also has been due diligent to follow the Mayor’s request to give questions, stating she did give her
questions in writing, and would like to hear what the other questions were, if there were any, to
see what those questions were. Councilwoman Allen stated she was not able to be at the Thursday
meeting and is just now receiving documents which she would like to review, and at this time, will
not change her vote. Councilwoman Allen stated after reviewing the documents she will be open
to reconsideration. President Evans stated he is not at a point tonight where he will change his
mind. President Evans further stated, as he has said in previous meetings, there are two things he
thinks should happen with this matter; (1) have an open discussion with the public, and (2) have
feedback from the citizens and taxpayers, who, some may agree or disagree with this. President
Evans also stated there are a lot of questions from citizens that he cannot answer, and we should
have a meeting with the public to discuss the land acquisition, and possibly outcomes in the



PAGE3 OF 11

SELMA CITY COUNCIL MEETING
NOVEMBER 13, 2006

5:00 P.M.

L MAYOR'S REPORT

purchasing of this land. President Evans stated the Council should sit down and outline the
strategies of the purchase of the land and once that is done go before the citizens, informing them
of the outline, and asking them for their feedback as to how they feel about the purchase.
President Evans further stated he is open to reconsidering, provided a process takes place whereby
everyone is on the same “page” with the property being purchased, and if so purchased, the plan,
and then take the citizens in open meetings and ask for their feedback on the purchase of the land.
Mayor Perkins stated to President Evans if this is what he feels, that he encourages he and the
Council to call a public meeting. Mayor Perkins further stated he had been speaking with citizens
recently at a Ward 6 meeting he attended, and in his interpretation, there was a strong outcry that
the City needs to move forward with this transaction. Mayor Perkins stated he has taken the lead,
and encourages President Evans and the Council members to take the lead, and represent the
citizens, and vote based upon representing them. Mayor Perkins further stated he does not want
to discard or discount the transaction for non-objective reasons. President Evans stated he has no
problem doing what he has asked, but stated he would like to see himself, Mayor Perkins, and
Council members sit down, and share their visions and ideas about the plan for this property, and
move forward with it. President Evans further stated he has received a petition with several
names of citizens who request that the Council vote against the land acquisition. President Evans
also stated from his heartfelt reasoning, this is how he feels they should go about proceeding with
the land acquisition, involving all of the parties. Councilwoman Crenshaw stated she wanted to
mention two things; the Housing Authority situation with the property across the river, Minnie B.
Anderson Homes (formerly Nathan B. Forrest Homes) was given away for a dollar.
Councilwoman Crenshaw further stated we need to start looking at when a person is talking about
saving, we need to look at that. Councilwoman Crenshaw also stated the St. James property was
bought for $125,000.00 which was very small, and that we need to find out how people really feel
about spending City’s monies. Councilwoman Crenshaw stated she thinks citizens should decide
how the City’s monies should be spent and that there should be a public hearing where citizens
will come and express how they feel about the purchase of the land, and not the Council going into
a meeting to do that. Mayor Perkins stated he did not say he would not participate in a forum; if
the Council chooses to have a forum and invites the Mayor he would look forward to attending,
and share the insight that he has. President Evans concurred, stating Mayor Perkins did not say he
would not attend. President Evans further asked Council members to inform him as to what their
feelings are about having a public hearing, and they would move forward from there. Mayor
Perkins stated to Councilwoman Martin that he understands she has laryngitis. President Evans
responded by saying Councilwoman Martin gave him something to read on behalf of her.
President Evans stated Councilwoman Martin stated in terms of how she feels about the property
purchase, “no I will not change my vote; I have received overwhelming requests and comments
from my ward and beyond it, to vote against it; remember, “of the people, by the people, and for
the people”, is what her request is at this point”. Mayor Perkins stated he respects that, and he
asked Councilwoman Martin if she had seen the document he was holding up before? Mayor
Perkins further stated he had come to the conclusion that a lot of what we are going to see and
experience over the next couple of years is tied to “ ‘08 Politics - Election Politics”. Mayor Perkins
also stated the public needs to understand there is going to be a tremendous amount of
misinformation provided to it for consumption. Mayor Perkins stated to please be mindful of the
source. Mayor Perkins further stated he is in possession of a document that is on that slander
website and he just wanted to ask Councilwoman Martin publicly if he has ever threatened her,
and he wants the record to reflect that Councilwoman Martin shakes her head with a “no” because
she has laryngitis. Mayor Perkins stated he wanted to make this clear. Mayor Perkins asked
Councilman Cain what his position is at this point on bringing the resolution back up. Councilman
Cain stated he cannot reconsider this transaction because of all of the “unknowns”. Councilman
Cain further stated he concurs with President Evans who well stated the process should possibly
take place in reviewing a transaction of this nature, stating a million dollars is a lot of money.
Councilman Cain also stated they were told at one time the property was for a cemetery, and then
they were told later it was for a school, and thereafter, told it was for recreation. Councilman Cain
stated because of all of the above, and a lot of “unknowns”, they need to develop a plan if that is
going to be the case for this property. Councilman Cain further stated one of the issues that the
Council requested was a historical assessment of the property and that has not been done or
completed, or even ordered at this time. Councilman Cain also stated an archaeological form has
been provided and that should be done before any reconsideration for the purpose of this
property. Councilman Cain stated he agrees with Councilwoman Martin, as well as, President
Evans, that the consensus of the majority of the community he has been dealing with and talking
to, are adamantly against this purchase, and this transaction. Councilman Leashore stated due to
the five colleagues voting down another chance to move forward with the acquisition of 111 acres
of land, at the meeting of October 23t it was brought to his attention that the City owns 50 acres of



PAGE4 OF 11

SELMA CITY COUNCIL MEETING
NOVEMBER 13, 2006

5:00 P.M.

L MAYOR’S REPORT

land, just outside of the City limits on Highway 80. Councilman Leashore further stated after
researching the 50 acres of land he is asking his five colleagues to take the lead in annexing this
land so that the City can use this land for whatever purpose it can be used for. Councilman
Leashore also stated there are no residents living on this land, therefore, it should not require a
referendum of the people. Councilman Leashore requests that his five colleagues ask local
delegations to assist in moving this forward, and getting it done. Councilman Williamson stated to
President Evans that his suggestion is a good one. Councilman Williamson further suggests to
have these public meetings to get some public input, and revisit this when they have a “handle” on
what this land would be used for. Councilman Williamson also stated he wanted to respond to
Councilwoman Crenshaw’s comment about us becoming like Lowndes County. Councilman
Williamson stated as someone who grew up on a farm for 18 years, and went to the public schools
there, he wishes she would not talk about Lowndes County like that. Councilwoman Crenshaw
stated when you go on television, standing in front of vacant stores, you are helping to perpetuate
people leaving this City by telling them how deprivated we are. Councilwoman Crenshaw further
stated, you want us to be like Lowndes County, and that is why you are not there; you left it in a
mess. President Evans stated he was in a meeting on yesterday at Calvary Church and the Mayor
of White Hall was there who stated Lowndes Counting was nothing close to being a deprived area,
but a popular moving forward community. Councilwoman Allen stated to President Evans she
would like to say and make it known and a part of the record that in every part of the process she
has attempted to listen to all sides, and will say that she also stated she does not agree with
Councilman Williamson in the fact that a ot of this has to do with politics as it relates to her,
stating he can speak for himself, or that he can allow him to speak for as many Council people who
will allow him to speak, but that he will not speak for her. Councilwoman Allen further stated this
is not politics with her, and that she does believe in business. Councilwoman Allen also stated she
tries to be professional, and she listens. Councilwoman Allen stated she has already stated that she
would reconsider but she is fair about the process. Councilwoman Allen further stated she
disagrees that she has politics involved with this, stating that is not the purpose. Councilwoman
Allen also stated she is supporting, and has a “stance” for Ward 4, and she encourages the Council
to ask their constituents how they feel. Councilwoman Allen stated she, too, has been listening to
constituents and has received many, many calls but this is not politics for her, but business for her.
Councilwoman Allen further stated she goes through the process and is very thorough.
Councilwoman Allen also stated the questions that were answered by the Mayor were all of her
questions, so she is going through the process.

B. Holiday Season Observance. Mayor Perkins stated Thanksgiving Day Holiday
will be observed on Thursday, November 23rd and Friday, November 24th, and City Hall will be
closed. Mayor Perkins further stated Christmas Eve Holiday will be observed on Friday,
December 227, and Christmas Day on Monday, December 25t%, and at present, we will return to
work on Tuesday, December 26th,

C BellSouth Contract - Proposal. Mayor Perkins stated Council should have in
their packets a copy of the BellSouth Contract proposal. Mayor Perkins further stated Ms. Lois
Williams has taken the lead in working with BellSouth in an attempt to get our
telecommunications resolved. Mayor Perkins also stated Council has already approved the
process for the Police Department, and the proposed contract that they have in their possession
will do the same thing for City Hall. Mayor Perkins stated the proposed contract outlines some
interesting savings that they will go over at the next work session. Mayor Perkins further stated
that he did not expect the Council to take any action at tonight's meeting but after review, would
like for the Council to act on very soon, and move forward. During discussion, a motion was made
by Councilwoman Crenshaw, and seconded by Councilwoman Martin, to approve said BellSouth
Contract proposal for City Hall. A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed with a
unanimous vote of the Council.

D. Sublease Agreement for ProHealth Selma, Incorporated. Mayor Perkins asked
Ms. Bridgett Mills to come forward and address the Council. Ms. Mills stated as indicated in the
memorandum from Mayor Perkins a request to waive the notification period that is required in the
Sublease Agreement for Good Samaritan was received from ProHealth Selma, Incorporated on
September 20, 2006. Ms. Mills further stated the Lease Agreement was signed by ProHealth Selma
on July 21t for medical office space at Good Samaritan, and would have run from May 2005 - May
2006. Ms. Mills also stated the reasons indicated came as a result of the resignation of the
collaborating physician that was working with the Clinic. Ms. Mills stated as the Clinic was going
through the process to become a federally qualified health clinic, part of that requirement included
the collaborating physician providing his provider number for the Clinic which would have been




